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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
WESTERN DISTRICT OF WISCONSIN

Sasha Rizzo, on behalf of herself and all

others similarly situated, Court File No.: 17-cv-408
Plaintiff,

V. CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT

Discover Bank and Kohn Law Firm S.C., JURY TRIAL DEMANDED
Defendants.

l.
INTRODUCTION

1. This is an action for damages, declaratory and injunctive relief, brought by Sasha
Rizzo (“Plaintiff Rizzo”) because of Defendant Discover Bank (*Defendant
Discover”) and Defendant Kohn Law Firm S.C.’s (“Defendant Law Firm”)
violations of Plaintiff’s privacy rights under the Fair Credit Reporting Act
(“FCRA”), 15 U.S.C. § 1681, et seq. and the protections of the Fair Debt
Collection Practices Act (“FDCPA”), 15 U.S.C. 8 1692 et seq.

2. Defendants publicly filed highly confidential and statutorily protected consumer

reports! of Plaintiffs and many other similarly situated Wisconsin consumers

1 As will be elaborated on below, a “credit score” is a “consumer report” See, 15 U.S.C
81681a(d)(1)(A) and 15 U.S.C 81681g(f)(2)(A). Consumer reports are statutorily protected
by the FCRA from wrongful disclosure to third parties. For purposes of this Complaint,
Plaintiffs will use the terms “credit report,” “consumer report” and “credit score”

interchangeably. They all maintain the same level of protection
1
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(collectively herein “Plaintiff”) as part of state court collection actions commenced in
Wisconsin circuit courts.  Plaintiff seeks relief under the federal Fair Credit
Reporting Act (“FCRA”) as such “use” of Plaintiffs’ consumer reports is not a
permitted purpose, nor do the credit scores in any way “evidence” the writing of the
underlying credit transactions. Defendants’ egregious practices run afoul of exactly
what Congress intended to prevent with its enactment of both the FCRA and
FDCPA. The FCRA was passed to keep consumer credit reports strictly private and
protected from unlawful disclosure to unauthorized parties. Defendants violated
these privacy provisions and should now be held accountable.

Courts in the Seventh Circuit acknowledge that the purpose of the FDCPA as a
whole is to “eliminate abusive debt collection practices by debt collectors,”
81692(a), and debt collectors are liable for failure to comply with “any provision” of
the Act. 81692k(a). Courts in this circuit also acknowledge that the FDCPA is a
broad remedial statute that imposes strict liability on debt collectors, and its terms
are to be applied in a liberal manner.

JURISDICTION
Jurisdiction of this court arises under 28 U.S.C. 8 1331 (Federal Question), 28
U.S.C. § 1337 (Commerce), 15 U.S.C. 81692k and 15 U.S.C. § 1681(p)
(“FCRA").

Venue is proper in this District pursuant to 28 U.S.C. 8§ 1391(b)(2) because the
2
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conduct at issue occurred in this District, the Plaintiffs reside in this District, and

Defendants Discover and Kohn Law Firm conduct business in this District.

PARTIES
Plaintiff Sasha Rizzo, formerly known as Sasha M. Murphy, is an individual
consumer currently residing in Eau Claire County, Wisconsin. Plaintiff Rizzo was
and is a “person” as defined under 15 U.S.C. § 1681a(b), and is protected by and
entitled to enforce the remedies of the FCRA and is a “consumer” as that term is
defined by 15 U.S.C. § 1692a(3).
Defendant Discover Bank is a Delaware state-chartered bank and leading credit
card issuer and has its principal place of business in Delaware with a registered
agent for service of Discover Bank, 100 West Market, Greenwood, DE 19950.
Defendant Discover is a Bank engaged in business throughout the United States
and also in the State of Wisconsin and lends money to and collects from Wisconsin
residents. Defendant Discover was and is a “person” as defined under 15 U.S.C. §
1681a(b) and a “user” of consumer information pursuant to 81681b(f), and is
restricted by and subject to the remedies of the FCRA. Discover is also a
“creditor” as defined by 15 U.S.C. 1692a(6)
Defendant Kohn Law Firm S.C. is law firm licensed to do business in the State of

Wisconsin and has a principal place of business located at 735 N. Water Street,
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#1300, Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53202. Defendant Law Firm regularly engages in
the collection of consumer debts in the District of Wisconsin. Defendant Law Firm
regularly attempts to collect consumer debts alleged to be due another. Defendant
Law Firm is, therefore, a “debt collector” as that term is defined by the FDCPA, 15
U.S.C. § 1692a(6). Defendant Law Firm is also a “person” as defined in 15 U.S.C.
8 1681a(b) and 15 U.S.C. 81681Db(f) and is subject to the requirements of the
FCRA.
V.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION
As a result of Defendants’ conduct Plaintiff and the putative class have suffered
an injury in fact, that the injury is traceable to the conduct of the Defendants, and
the harm is likely to be redressed by a favorable judicial decision.
As shown in the paragraphs that follow, the Plaintiff and the putative class have
suffered “an invasion of a legally protected interest” which is their privacy of
private and financial information occasioned by the conduct of the Defendants.
The paragraphs below show that the legally protected interest is concrete and
particularized and “actual or imminent” and has affected the Plaintiff and the
putative class in a personal and individual way.
The United States Supreme Court has held in Spokeo, Inc. v. Robins, 136 S. Ct.
1540, 2016 WL 2842447 (May 16, 2016), that for standing purposes, concrete

injuries include intangible harms.
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13.  The Court in Spokeo further noted that:
“Because the doctrine of standing derives from the case or controversy
requirement, and because that requirement in turn is grounded in historical
practice, it is instructive to consider whether an alleged intangible harm
has a close relationship to a harm that has traditionally been regarded as
providing a basis for a lawsuit in English or American Courts.”
And,
“...that Congress may elevate to the status of legally cognizable injuries
concrete, de facto injuries that were previously inadequate in law.”
(Emphasis Added).
14.  Invasion of privacy is an example in the Restatement (Second) of Torts 652A
(1977) of “harm that has traditionally been regarded as providing a basis for a
lawsuit in English or American courts.”
15.  The lead Senate sponsor, William Proxmire? stated that:
The aim of the Fair Credit Reporting Act is to see that the credit reporting
system serves the consumer as well as the industry. ...the consumer has a
right to see that the information is kept confidential and it is used for the
purposed for which it is collected; and he has the right to be free from
unwarranted invasions of his personal privacy...
(Emphasis Added).

16.  One of the primary protections of the FCRA is the requirement that “users”, such

as Defendants Discover and Law Firm, have a permissible purpose when they use

a consumer report as demonstrated in 15. U.S.C. §§ 1681b(a) & 1681b(f).
V.

FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS

17.  As a consumer managing her financial affairs, Plaintiff Rizzo, and others similarly

2115 Cong. Rec. 2413 (1969).
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situated, sought credit by the use of credit cards for personal financial needs from
Defendant Discover.

Plaintiff Rizzo had a Discover credit card ending in 4195, which constitutes a debt
as that term is defined at 15 U.S.C. § 1692a(5).

Plaintiff Rizzo was unable to repay the balance on her Defendant Discover credit

card account.

Defendants Discover and Law Firm, through its attorney Tyler M. Helsel, filed a
state court collection complaint in the Circuit Court of Eau Claire County on or
about May 8", 2017, bearing the court file number 2017-SC-000774.

The complaint sought to recover a money judgment in the amount of $4,850.78
against Plaintiff Rizzo (f/k/a Murphy) for the unpaid balance on the credit card,
plus costs and disbursements and interest.

Defendants Discover and Law Firm attached a copy of a monthly billing statement
at paragraph 15 of the state court collection action relating to Plaintiff Rizzo’s
credit card debt.

Specifically, one document Defendants attached to the state court collection
complaint was Plaintiff Rizzo’s credit score information. (See attached Exhibit 1).
Plaintiff Rizzo’s credit score published by Defendants constitutes part of her credit
history as shown in her “consumer report” as that term is defined by 15 U.S.C. §
1681a(d)(1).

This illegal use and/or publication of Plaintiff Rizzo’s credit score violated the

6
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requirements of 15 U.S.C. 81681b(f) as neither Defendants Discover nor Kohn
Law Firm had a permissible purpose for using and/or publishing such protected
personal private information.

Defendants had no permissible purpose for “using” Plaintiff Rizzo’s consumer
report in its public filings, and therefore has violated the provisions of 15 U.S.C.
88 1681b and 1681b(f).

Defendant Law Firm by filing the state court collection action was attempting to

collect the Defendant Discover’s credit card debt.

Defendant Law Firm’s filing of Plaintiff Rizzo’s personal consumer report / credit

score violated 15 U.S.C. 88 1692d, 1692¢(10) and 1692f.

VI.
CLASS ALLEGATIONS

Defendants unlawfully “used” the consumer report / credit score of Plaintiff and
others when they published said reports in their filing of collection complaints in
circuit courts throughout the state of Wisconsin.

Upon information and belief, Defendants have on more than one hundred (100)
occasions within the past two (2) years filed state court collection actions against
similar account holders in the State of Wisconsin wherein it unlawfully “used” the
consumer report/score, in violation of 15 U.S.C. 88 1681Db(f).

Plaintiff brings this action individually and as a class action.
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Pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 23(a-b), Plaintiff seeks to certify two (2)
classes.
The first class Plaintiff seeks to certify is defined hereinafter the “FCRA Class”:
All current and former customers of Defendant Discover in the State of
Wisconsin that have had their consumer report published in circuit
court collection actions within two year of the date of the filing of this
Complaint.
The FCRA Class shall be subject to the following exclusions, who are not members
of the FCRA Class, eligibility according to the above criteria notwithstanding:
All (1) Counsel for Plaintiff and the Class, (2) Counsel for Defendants,
and (3) the assigned Judge, Magistrate Judge, and their clerks and
staff.
The second class that Plaintiff seeks to certify is defined hereinafter the “FDCPA
Class”:
All current and former customers of Defendant Discover in the State of
Wisconsin that have had their consumer report / credit score
published in state court collection actions by Defendant Law Firm
within one year of the date of the filing of this Complaint.
The FDCPA Class shall be subject to the following exclusions, who are not
members of the FDCPA Class, eligibility according to the above criteria
notwithstanding:
All (1) Counsel for Plaintiff and the Class, (2) Counsel for Defendants,

and (3) the assigned Judge, Magistrate Judge, and their clerks and
staff.
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Rule 23(a) Requirements

Numerosity
Defendant Discover is one of the largest banks in the United States, offering a
variety of financial services to consumers in numerous states.
Defendant Discover provides credit cards to Wisconsin consumers.
Some of those Wisconsin consumers may have, at one time or another, defaulted on
their Discover card obligations.
Defendant Discover, through its attorney Defendant Law Firm, have filed collection
actions against such a large number of consumers such that joinder of all in this
lawsuit would be impracticable.
Defendant Law Firm conducts debt collection activities throughout the state of
Wisconsin and has filed collection actions against consumers on behalf of Defendant
Discover.
Defendants routinely file collection actions in the State of Wisconsin and attach to
those suits the consumer reports / credit scores and that joinder of all consumers in
this lawsuit would be impracticable.
Therefore, the estimated number of class members for each subclass is in excess of
50 persons.

Commonality
All members of the FCRA and FDCPA Classes (hereinafter “Classes”) had their

rights violated in the same manner by the same illegal actions of Defendants.
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Common evidence, in particular (1) a list of customers in Wisconsin who have
collection suits/actions filed against them by any law firm other than Defendant Law
Firm; and (2) a list of Defendant Discover customers in Wisconsin who have had
collection suits filed against them specifically by Defendant Law Firm, will drive
resolution of the claims of the Classes.
Statutory relief under the FCRA and FDCPA is directed based upon the common
conduct of Defendants, and not the subjective, individual experiences of members of
the FCRA and FDCPA Classes.

Typicality
Plaintiff has the same claims to statutory relief as do all other members of the
Classes.
Any defenses that Defendants may have to liability or quantum of statutory damages
with respect to Plaintiff’s claims would be generally applicable to all members of the
two Classes.

Adequacy

Plaintiff brings this lawsuit after an extensive investigation of Defendants’ alleged
misconduct.

Plaintiff brings this lawsuit with the intention to stop Defendants’ unlawful practices
and recovery statutory remedies for all consumers affected.

Plaintiff will continue to vigorously pursue relief for the Classes.

10
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Plaintiff’s counsel, the Consumer Justice Center, P.A and Lyons Law Firm P.A,,
have been certified as class counsel in numerous of class actions enforcing consumer
rights laws in this District and other districts of the United States federal courts.
Plaintiff’s counsel are committed to expending the time, energy, and resources
necessary to successfully prosecute this action on behalf of the Classes.

Rule 23(b)(3)

Predominance/Superiority

Predominance
Statutory relief under the FCRA and FDCPA follows from evidence that Defendants
acted in a manner common to the entire class and not the subjective experience of
any one complainant.
Common issues will predominate substantially over individual issues in the ultimate
resolution of this action for the two classes.

Superiority

Plaintiff and Plaintiff’s counsel are not aware of any other pending actions against
Defendants related to their filings of consumers’ credit reports in Wisconsin state
court collection actions.

Members of the Classes have little interest in individual control over this action
given the small amounts at stake compared to the cost, risk, delay, and uncertainty of
recovery after prosecuting a lawsuit.

Upon information and belief, few members of the Classes are aware that

Defendants’ actions were unlawful.
11
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59.  The class notice mechanism provides an opportunity for uninformed members of the
Classes to learn about their rights and obtain relief where they otherwise would not

have.

VII.

CAUSES OF ACTION

COUNT I.

FAIR CREDIT REPORTING ACT - 15 U.S.C. § 1681 et seq.

AGAINST DEFENDANTS

60.  Plaintiff incorporates by reference all the foregoing paragraphs.
61.  Defendants willfully violated provisions of the Fair Credit Reporting Act.
Defendants' violations include, but are not limited to the following:
Defendants’ violated 15 U.S.C. 88 1681b and 1681b(f) and by willfully
using a consumer report/credit score in the circuit court collection filings
and is contrary to established Federal law.
62.  As a result of the above and continuing violations of the FCRA, Defendants are
liable to the Plaintiff in the sum of statutory damages, punitive damages, costs,

disbursements, and reasonable attorneys' fees, along with any appropriate

injunctive relief.

12
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COUNT 1.

FAIR DEBT COLLECTION PRACTICES ACT -15U.S.C. 8 1692 et seq.

AGAINST DEFENDANT LAW FIRM

Plaintiff incorporates by reference all the foregoing paragraphs.
The foregoing acts and omissions of Defendant Law Firm constitute violations of the
FDCPA as outlined above.
Defendant Law Firm engaged in unlawful debt collection activity when filing the
collection action against Plaintiff and the simultaneous filing of the Plaintiff’s
consumer report / credit score, in violation of 15 U.S.C. 8§ 1692d, 1692¢(10) and
1692f.
As a result of Defendant Law Firm’s violations of the FDCPA, Plaintiff is entitled to
statutory damages, pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1692k(a)(2)(A), and reasonable
attorney’s fees and costs, pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1692k(a)(3), from Defendant Law
Firm.
VIII.

TRIAL BY JURY

Plaintiff is entitled to and hereby demands a trial by jury. U.S. Const. amend. VII;

Fed. R. Civ. P. 38.

13
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IX.

REQUEST FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff respectfully requests that a Judgment be entered

against Defendants awarding her the following relief:

@)
(b)
(©)
(d)

()

(f)
(9)
(h)

(i)

()
(k)

certifying the action as a class;

ordering that Plaintiff’s counsel be named as class counsel,

awarding Plaintiff and the FCRA Class appropriate statutory and
punitive damages for violating the Fair Credit Reporting Act, 15
U.S.C. § 1681 et seq.;

awarding Plaintiff and the FCRA Class costs and reasonable attorney’s

fees and post judgment interest pursuant 15 U.S.C. 81681 et seq.;

an order enjoining the Defendants from further violations of the

Fair Credit Reporting Act relative to the Defendant Discover’s
inclusion of consumer reports / scores in all such pleadings filed in
various Wisconsin circuit courts;

an Order instructing Defendants to move to seal all class members’
Wisconsin circuit court collection files;

awarding Plaintiff statutory damages against the Defendant Law Firm for
violations of the FDCPA pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1692k;

awarding the FDCPA Class members statutory damages against
Defendant Law Firm for violations of the FDCPA pursuant to 15 U.S.C. §
1692k;

awarding Plaintiff and the FDCPA Class members reasonable attorney’s
fees and costs against Defendant Law Firm;

any other appropriate declaratory and/or injunctive relief; and

such other and further relief as the court deems just and equitable.

Dated this 26th day of May, 2017.

Respectfully submitted,

By: s/Thomas J. Lyons Jr.

Thomas J. Lyons, Jr., Esq.

MN Attorney 1.D. #: 0249646
CONSUMER JUSTICE CENTER, P.A.
367 Commerce Court

Vadnais Heights, MN 55127

Telephone: (651) 770-9707

14
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Facsimile: (651) 704-0907
Email: tommy@consumerjusticecenter.com

Thomas J. Lyons, Esqg.

WI Attorney I.D. #: 1019127
LYONS LAW FIRM P.A.

367 Commerce Court

Vadnais Heights, MN 55127
Telephone: (651) 770-9707
Facsimile: (651) 770-5830
Email: tlyons@lyonslawfirm.com

Joshua D. Christianson, Esq.

WI Attorney I.D. #: 1060033
FREUND LAW OFFICE

920 So. Farwell St., Ste. 1800
P.O. Box 222

Eau Claire, W1 54702-0222
Phone: 715/832-5151
josh@menomonie-bankruptcy.com

ATTORNEYS FOR PLAINTIFF

15
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S"i”ATE OF WISCONSIN CIRCUIT COURT EAU CLAIRE COUNTY
" _ [C] Amended

Discaver Bank C/Q Discover Products Inc vs. Summons and Complaint

Sasha M Murphy Small Claims

Case No. 20178C000774
Claim for money ($1Q,OQO cr less) 31001

Plaintiff: Defendant:

Discover Bank C/O Discover Products Inc Sasha M Murphy

6500 New Albany Road

New Albany OH 43054 Eau Claire W1 54701

FILED

05-98-2017

Clerk of Clreuit Cour
E&u Clalra Couity, W
2017SC000774

If you require reasonable accommodations due to & disabllity to participate in the court process, please call 715-839-4818
at least 10 working days prior to the scheduled court date, Please note that the court does not provide transportation,

SUMMONS

To the Defendant(s):
You are belng sued as described on the attached complaint. If you
wish to dispute this matter;

You must appear at the time and place stated.

(1 You must file a written answer and provide a copy to the plantlf

or plalntiff's attorney on or before the date and time stated,

If you do not appear or answer, the plalntiff may win this case and a
judgment entered for what the plaintiff Is asking.

Date

08-06-2017

Time

03:00 pm

Roorh #2560
Eau Clalre Gounty Government Genter
721 Oxford Avenue

Eau Claire WI 54703

Clork/Attomnay Signature
Electronically Slgned by Susan Schaffer

Daty Summons lasued

08-08-2017

Date Summons Malled
05-08-2017

SC-500E(CCAP), 08/2011 Summons and Gomplaint - Small Claims

This form shall ot be modified. 1t may be supplemented with additional materal,

Chapter 799, Wisconsin Statules
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FILED

STATE OF WISCONSIN, CIRCUIT COURT, EAU GLAIRE COUNTY Flllt 001185 | For Offlal Uss  U0-08-2017 -
. . . Clerk of Clreuit Court

Platntiff: (Name [ﬂ}r{st. middle, last), Address, Clty, State, ZIp)

E10 DISGOVER BRODUCTS ING ‘ o Chile Gaihty, W
20175C000774
6500 NEV ALBANY HUAD 1780007
NEW ALBANY OH 43054 :
[18ee attachad for additional plaintiffs,
V8 0 Amended
To; Defondant(s): (Name [first, middie, lest], Address, Clty, State, Zlp) S“m“‘gs‘z ﬁ%ﬁa?'g?p'aint
SASHA M MU Y
Casa No.
EAU CLAIRE W 54701-7804 0
i ® Clalm for manay ($10,000 or less) 31001
1 See attached for additional defandants. O Returm of properly (replevin) $1003
If you require reasonable accommodations due to a disablitty to particlpate In the court 5 evtatlon 81004
process, please call 7E5:3¥0.4314 at least 10 working days prior to the scheduled court date. gi‘,’ﬁﬂ:ﬂ:’:‘ :‘Lm”""’“”"' g;ggg
lsaise note that the court does not provide transpontation, i Return of aarnost money 51000
- & TeryPacsonalInjury (5
SUMMONS ' i

To the Defendant(s):

You ara belng stad as described below. If you wish to diaputa this matter:

01 You must appear at the time and place stated,
ANDJ/OR (Clark will cirele oneo;J

[3 You must file a written answer and provide a copy to the plaintiff or

plaintiff's attorney on or before the date and time statsd, ' i ‘ ZER SR R
If you do not appear or anawer, the plalntiff may win this vase and & Judgment EAL) GLAIRE COUNTY COURTHOUSE
entersd far what the plaintiff Is asking, COUNTY BOARDROOM #2560
' 721 OXFORD AVE
. EAU CLAIRE, WI 54703 ‘
ClariAltomay Signalure Date Sumniang fssuad Data Summons Malled ’

COMPLAINT
Plaintiif's Damand:

The plaintiff states the following olalm against the defendant{s):
1. Plaintiff demands judgment for: (Check as appropriate)

B Claim for Money $4.B80.78 0 Tort/Parsonal Injury
0 Retum of Earnest Monay 3 Eviction U Eviction dua to foraclosure
L3 Return of praperly (replovin) Dutaring pragoey ot & twina) O Confiemation, vacation, modl
{Noteo%%wdz x(«wfs.m%gsww i;3ntlné{fe mfmq:.nvqr vollideral) of arbitration award. + Modifleation or correction

Plus Interast, costs, attorey fees, If any, and such other rellef as the oourt deems proper, )
2, Brief statement of dates and facts: {f this le an evistion action and you are saeking maney damages, you must eiso state that claim on thi form,)

Seq attached for additional Information. Provide copy of attachmants for court and defendant(s),

Veriflcation: Undar nath, | atata that the ahove aomplaint fa trua, exarpt as those mattars statad upon Infarmation ang
belief, and as to those matters, | belleve them to be trye.

Lam; tuplaintiff, _s.oftatney for the plalntlff.

Slate of Wisconsin Slgratura of Plalniiff o Atlernay " Data ~" I ARomey's Siate Bar Numbar
County of Milwaukee Blactroniealy slgned by: VIAY 2 5 2 0 1103366
* J8) TYLER M, MELSEL WAY €2 2
Subscribed and swern to beforemeon .. . Plalnliffs/Attorney's Telephono Number 4 Lat Firm and Addrecs
N | 4H14/276-0458 ' " Kohn Law Firm 8.C.
Notary Pyt gyt Wil 736 N, Watar St,, Sulta 1300
. ’ e R Milwaukea, WI 53202
TR Famiedior TPt

My commissionfterm expiras:

SC-800, 0841 Symmana and Comgplalnt-Small Glaim .

) Chapler 799, Wisconsin Slaiutes
This Yoem ahall not b modified. It may ba supplemented with sdditional matarfal,
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: Our File #891188
STATE OF WISCONSIN CIRCUIT COURT EAU CLAIRE COUNTY
DISCOVER BANK
C/Q DISCOVER PRODUCTS INC
6500 NEW ALBANY ROAD COMPLAINT
NEW ALBANY OH 43054 Case No.
ok AMOUNT CLAIMED IS $10,000 OR
Plaintiff, LESS
V.
SASHA M MURPRHY

EAU CLAIRE WI 54701-7894

Defendant,

Now comes the plaintiff, by the Kohn Law Firm 8.C,, plaintiffs attorneys, and for a cause
of action against the defendant, alleges as follows:

1. The plaintiff in this action is:

DISCOVER BANK

C/O DISCOVER PRODUCTS INC

6500 NEW ALBANY ROAD

NEW ALBANY OH 43054

2. Upon information and belief, the defendant is:
SASHA M MURPHY

EAU CLAIRE W1 547017894

. 3. Theplaintiff and defendant entered into a charge account agreementand the defendant purchased
various goods, merchandise and/or services, and/or took cash advances and/or balance transfers,
utilizing said charge account, identified as Account # *iskikikkskhirg] 05,
FiRST CAUSE OF ACTION - BREACH OF CONTRACT
4. The plaintiff realleges and incorporates paragraphs 1 through 3 above.

5. Through use of the charge account, the defendant agreed to be bound by the terms and conditions
of the charge account dgresment, '

6.. The defendant defaulted under the terms of said charge account-agreement by failing to make
payments when due, and there remains a balance due on the account, -
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SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION - ACCOUNT STATED
7. The plaintiff realleges and incorporates paragraphs 1 through 3 above.
8. The plaintiff provided monthly statements to the defendant evidencing charge account activity.
9. The defendant retained the statements without making written objections thereto,

10, The defendant has failed to pay the amount set forth on the statements and there remains a
balance due.

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION ~ IMPLIED CONTRACT/UNJUST ENRICHMENT
11, The plaiﬁtiff realleges and incorporates paragraphs 1 through 3 above,

12. The defendant was unjustly enriched by retaining the *beneﬁt of the various goods, merchandise
services, cash advances and/or balance transfers, and not paying for sarne. ’

DAMAGES

%_31.1 The plaintiffis seeking to recover from the defendant the amount set forth below, calculated as
ollows:

Principal, interest and fees through date of attached statement: $4,850.78
Late fees from the date of attached statement to May 3, 2017; $.00
Interest from the date of attached statement to May 3, 2017: $.00
ga%nle;lts and/or credits received from the date of attached statement to May $.00
TOTAL: $4,850.78

‘ I;L.. rtri‘?f? defendant refuses to pay to pay this debt despite due demand having been made by the
plaintiff,

15, Attached hersto and incorporatec} herein by reference s a billing statement addressed to the
defendant reflecting the total outstanding balance on the defendant's account at the time this billing
statement was issued.
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WHEREFORE, the plaintiff demands judgment against the defendant in the amount of
$4,850.78, as well as the costs and disbursements of this action and any other relief this court deems
just and equitable, '

NOTICE: This communication is from a debt collector, This is an attempt to collect a debt,
and any information obtained will be used for that purpose.

Dated at Milwaukge, Wisconsin this MAY 08 2017 |

KOHN LAW FIRM 8,C.,

Electronically signed by: [/ TYLER M, HEBLSEI,
TYLER M. HELSEL
STATE BAR# 1103366

735 N. Water St., Suite 1300
Milwaukee, WI 53202-4106
(414) 276-0435
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oa11e8 Discover® More® Card

18

Account numbar ending in 4195
Opan Dota: Jun 28, 2017- Close Date: Fels 27, 2017
Cardmember Sinca 2010

Page 1 of 4
( Previaus Balance sanzeo | [ NewBefanee $4,850,78
Payments end Crodits : $0.00 Minimum Payment Bue ' £1,139.00
;unichuw; ’ . :ggg Payment Dua Data Morch 22, 2017
clonce Transters $0, '
Cash Advances 4 $0.00 | ¥ Ineludas post dua emount ofs $980.00
Faes Charged * $37.00 | Lata Payment Warning: If we do net receive your minimurm payment by tha
Intarast Charged + $101,18 da(e;ls}ed a):'al:al, you muy };nve ILE pft:,y a late fen of up to $37,00 ond your
purchase und hatance lranster APRs for new Iransactions may be increased up ta
Naw Balanca $4,850.78 tha Panally APR of 27,99% variabla,
Saa Intarast Charge Colculotion section following 1ha ' Minlmum Paymant Warning: It yau make enly the minimum payment saeh
. Transacions sactlon for dutgiled APR information. . ... . erlad, you will pay mara in infarest and 1 will toke you longer l’:‘zoy off yaue
Cradit Lina $4,300 | bolance, For exampla:
Cradit Line Available $0 | #you moke no.ackiiionel ehorges | vimeveil payoltthe 1 Andyonwilond up . ¢
using fhis card sind esch nink”- | ilanse shown on this | pesing an osimatad fotal
Cosh Advanca Cradit Lino 3400 Y B oo | vommentinokaut, bl
Cash Advance Credit Line Available 50 | 9{113( fhe.r_njlgl_mum soymant e !5 years | T§13438
' You muay ba able to aveid intorast on Purchoses, | Myeuwauld like information about credit counseling sarvices, col) 1-800-347.1121,
| 800 rovarse for datalls, ) Y et e ETEEL IO o
Y} REWARDS
{ vheele Rorre® Anniversary Month ")
Cashback Bonus Newembar
Openlng Balances % 0,00
Your FICO® Cradit Score on 2/21/17 Naw Cashbitick Bonus This Parlo BR R 000
i Radeemud This Berdod - ., . v 3 _ 0.00
\[tack racent FICO® Scoras on our moblla opp orenline ., ¢ | Cashback Bonus Balunce $ 0.00
You are averlimit by $550.78. Paying mure thar the Minimum ¢ Ta learn mara, log In af Discover.com )
Paymant Due will reduce your overlimit amount,

. Make Choek bla to Discovar, Do Not Send Cush,
NOTICE: S,EE REVERSE SIDE FOR IMPORTANT INFORMATION Plgc::a fnfd am: pnr(?uru:f:: ‘I::Io'«:, d:!m;\ and :eiurn with your poymont,
) P(f);me!\f CQU])OI‘\ Puy On“ne 1& PGY by Phone ' i Atcount numbe.r M\d]ng n T T 41 91‘;
Plqus.b do noffeld; ¢lip or staple, Dll~scovar'.com o 1.800:347.2483 Minimum Paymont Due * $1,139,00
New Balance ™ o T $4,880,78
1l Lt o ger - o
oLl e AL I | T T R T T Py D e . e
SASHA M MURPHY Amount enclosed $ o _}
m—— u J
EAU CLAIRE W1 54701.7894
PQ BOX 6103
CAROL STREAM IL 60197.4103
Hy{ b1k
Phore and Infernel poymenls must be raceived by 5PM ET (o be cradiled as of he sume day l”"'““'"l“ lll "n I ”"' 'l'l'"I'l'l"'"'l'llll]l["[l[

Address, axmadl ar talephons changed? Nols chungas on ravarss side

00000Y98LUEHLA058L49L04E5078008L30401L3500




SASHAMMURPHY. ... Account number endina in 4195
Ipartant Information o

See your Cardminbur Agraemend, Your Cordmembar Agrsement
contains all the ferin: of your Accngit,

Lost wr slolen cards, Report immedialelyl Call 1.800.347.2683,

What 'Lg Pci,lf You Think You Find A Mistake On Your Statement;

I gty think fBare i an.spydr S vty solapsend, wiils 1o us gl Ditees, 0O
Bug AT, Salk et Gl LT HAIB0Q4M . 6 subio the fonst provided ut
hilpy:d fds e coondballinggabanubice. Yo mosd st vs wthit o) diiye
altor the viver opyiared en pour seleipnt” Yaitmay call ws, Wl fyvar de
wa ore ol required fo investigals any potential errors, and you may hove fo
pay the ameunt In question, The Billing Rights Notice furthar explains your
rights, Plnae sae your Cardmember Agreemens or visit

hitps: //discevar.com/billingrights far a copy of this Nalice,

ey, You may o -n”l s okl ywe Aceuint Nolrnde stiriy o,
Ho‘\{\' Ay, ou muxl‘pgv %’l |'ml};he\ -I‘_iiv\x.’mm‘u-ﬁuvmmf Dy by e rfu',{mmﬁ'
‘Tue Bate. Send goly your-alleneahle o st ,».‘-:)ynm.m;\r‘-l:?yu'wﬂ‘; il fh
hatiour guelfen of 1Hls sl&timrium Iy ihe utwabapey. p‘l'nw derd,'wltyr, afftang
prastare. Puprinls son Wilhaul pt‘urur-pns}nmu il fr-pebn el 1 Yhas,
fopded, Hyou pay byachiecl, sau authare s to Usenlatmethan un ooty
-gheck a ke un elecleaniq fend bansiny Trem yaue peeourd of e fmosersl
nedilution indieuted or )\'-‘mr chogle o ty mewssiihe p‘mm.&ﬂ e q rhewk
hun_s?-:nu, g Pepgrnat)] 15 gplecoeszead s Ki»cqunn: Ty tranvder, the
“hansber wnll Tv Bar the savone T dheek, futids oy v it MT
your agseunt og ynat. o 1l‘: naene By Wi peeshet your e, il yreus will
ol jugive your.chark ok

Hlowsn B not send soshSanaing soth 1 ot éliewad. This’ protsssin 4f
FOU mqmw gbia Torny ?.ggm_uﬂf 9.}"0 du n)mr!« it son seudesh £ B
supruspondunse vith your uyir.mn!n,l ‘vt 4one the Payeaun e nny otien
nwaryes, or Yol da ty p«)v. elape ”'}};i' {ham IFo. Qi preeneodd.. !«_‘n\mmnm
rorinved obone praenising wgﬂﬂ%'lw M asal ivte an any day il ba
Fteniiind .)u‘y%r oeaunt an of ol iy, Brvensmy redinited. of oy ﬁmrmamn
’ﬁwllrﬁ'a L M.k;m}‘. intewil bu‘midlmd t yourehcraunt o of the ogy
day. [t vy Bawd misplaesd oor onetnpe, so ,drmr Pnrman! &u et
PO Bov 0103, Corolibear, Il 601970 164, Ploase ullove 7 Fordops ke’
dilivary. "x‘ vonr Poyiaend i oninemal) ek, we.prtarve The “W st
1t e on wlucieotyle delat, Puyi _}».A};cgdn g(xvfn}l) ser g phan will o arediled
tr-of hi oy at tucaipd if inade by SPM E :

o e edse svaka 0 Pajinant er enb uphguidimane pepniintz by sallin
T;ﬁ(ﬁ%l—&%%ﬁﬁ&-Mm»’*ymﬂw Py My by I?\.n?stﬁlnn.|mrhxd silrean ok ya
ertggrrontw gs\ derductod on e Pavinen Doy Dt w‘pwn etk 0
stadanionl, ardbed e autormalic aapmen) dolg mbero -rg rin sl sheghinsgny,
il vaw reciiel R a1Bpg hayiai .-iul?»l;ml;wu\_vl.‘.' 4 o‘u;, Wttty
T D, Iy ;'.clwr,!vl{é«\!pcymynl data fulks on aweukiend. o1 bk
Iveliday, yed pc?mcm wall o seaseised the isiness dappior Wdtic
weshand o bonk h‘csllw' ln anden ta achivdule mluj.\ml,\!r pp},ﬂmw} m

Intrgoh i\f,yc; ] et it uut\wus.: ¥ o o) mzk weaSuptintar
You v;:ﬁl b tiskesd o mgvida the v.s"\\.ou:.éo!) gt o e sovaml yueorily
yurmbir of 1he priras Dogasiar,ps yout lm:lron,nj.«t-npluru, g praviding
r]w:w wuharg, you vall ha onessieg e iz antrlialion feoliow ve up

your Sunk Te dadus) woch paviment you snlbonze, in fhe rnub aeloviod By
Yem B gone Joank aeraont, Yoo abus pulisnna g s et delit ar cram
E:muIus'v&o’ya?r‘bunh ueeawi, ts ppdikaibabect etatl-al opf e in L7
‘pr\:‘ruwu oty cli'gqymmt You gtgn epmmed o sl peymant g}' i,
ab L BUR 342 S0 or be mal i ~1tfcw-‘&*r.-lt'k1’5n'f. 42 ,wr-m& 4 L.uxr,
RUY K }M)l aptvient qeneallatinay must be rovanid Bufere % PMEYN of
5 sahusiulied witldrewol dde, '

4
.

MR,
Y

IF e puysiants i vely i avicuil, wo.will tell you an sach monthly billin
Jintfz\rlv,\'ﬁa!m\un ww:‘ f’*:‘«‘%""'*‘"“?ﬁh’“ﬂidiﬁl@ hyc)w mucl\ b will be, %ou ¢
U psRs el auffiusr fn 4 ot avallabla in your bank account, und alt
fransaciions fmust comply with U.S. law,

CHANGE OF ADDRESS

L Ao AP UM 2 et 3. 4D vz I RREEIC TN IR

If carvact on front, do nol use, Please print dleatly in blua or black Ink, in the space pravided,

.Open D

S BT LIS B
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ole: lun 28, 2017« Cloye Doter Feb 27, 2017

PageZof 4

Yéur i wlaitovaitie’ pagivnts fie i) dotavison e Balined, ) Suismnat
#inirmwin, Ragrient, qus‘i‘gi! ;.'nlum»hll?hﬂh|nldm Pediment Dhis h‘nz o fnad
detiey nmount, s ). ulliee Rellerampunt. 1 soye .-.chf-,dulu:d:"&!&w‘i Al
Semasird® payrment bt anegh e T Minimues Fagraent One o lisi,g
m‘-.‘/mn tnciithly hilling slateriont; Vol sthadiled-priyinens fap shol Hagth
will bie igroanned 46, geiat this Minnmuen Bavitien) Otee the schedyled
payivnnt tn geoakar e e’ A i Pyl Chue, ary exeos will be
applind n.deeordarice stk ybur G dmeathie-Afreamelt 1w sehadufad
paveasat n\‘m)w therthe. My Babanes-an yeur billibg stohsment, thot
poprteit will e prigpasted dnlfor the anwngit ef yowe Mow Rolonde. Yeur
autamatic praarapt-omeunt mng be legs tha-the gractnt indicofud s the
billing afetarment basad on crodits ar payrants affer the Close Date,

It yau anroll by phana In our autemutic pryiment saicy, pleosa fill-n the
fquowing blanks below and relaln the ml:lt-hprlzaﬁnn'fn.f »y_npur records,

Amount; [ Full Pay [ Min Pay [IMin Pay+ § :

L Othar Amounts,,,. 5. Bank Routing #1 ;
Bank Account # o

T ORI Aot
Menthly on the [ Payment Dug Date

¥

13 sy of month insert data)

Crodit Ruporting. We may report Infarmation obout your Account lo gredit
buregus. hote poyments, wleged, paympnty, of ottwr dabisolls o pan Avgend
trasny by vutlaerod e youn greditrupart, We neumally eopant the sialus. and
poymant hitory of yawr Ascount ln cadit esparing ageneiiss smeh mvanth, I
g buliseahve) o renov) s inageavets ar iegorninte ghmm wnfes ug.ai thi,
uddle Diytorvar, PO Box 10316, Wiimingian, D6 1 DEE05115, Puore
uteluchn yaur neme, uddiass, fomedutophai euraber.and:-Aacoum amlsor,

Frving fnferaat. Your dua dalg inof Toast 28, doys:aftes. v clase 4t aach
bﬂl\;rm hm:?nd {ut toerst 24 denes e Wit pov d;‘iht\!,boqi‘n in Febrgund- Wae
wiill. ot el g g sy inleenst e Baeeliages iyou poyyour nmﬁry‘wbalunce
byt dese ehate:anch-month, We will Bagly chatiging larast on Bask
Advcgwea ond Balance Tranglers as of the later of ihe Transadion Date or the
first day of tha billing periad In which the transaction pested to your Accaunt,

HewWe Calsylotefnterust Charges, Wo Un the Daily Brlanca Moo
pmlwlinu corvsint teantaglions) fo ealoulate thaBalanae Subiedd to faturost
bt Far tors Infermation, plesse coll us o 188047 29573,

Balarian Sybloct {0 Intergat Bata, Yeur stolagoat showa a alance Sitly
'En Lnleres! Mtiu It shovs{;.f‘ﬁs or na}h trassedion watagory, %\'e’gﬁ;u‘:"m
pgﬂ[ggi to interast Rate Is the average 4f the M!g.b« ances ding e o“mg
Craelit Bakangss, I yaur Aecunt hos a eredit balanee, the amount is ahown
oh the frani of your billing siatutent, A credit baloneg is monay thot ls owed
o e - Yol iy mdhacmgis gaivet this arouit if ?m(n' Agaound s at,
Wt olll-enial you ¢ ralund 08t somoining baloncrat $T.00 syt oltue .
& b, 6 by lhwpsalnd tiniead Ly applicable low, o upin-togues gl
6 the addrdss in thi Confded Us siseian an paga 3 af yeur billing stalatent,

Badunee Trasnsfers, Baloy e}'ramfﬁys are o{fer?d at our discretion ond
accrue Infarest at the standord purchasa rate unless we fall you otharwise,

Discaver may-msnitor and/or record telaphona colls batwean you and
Discover repinseminiives for qualily assurance purposas,

The Discover® cqrcl {3 Issued by Discover Bank, Mamber FDIC, 11239541116

‘} Straet Address . Home Phone .
: L Work Phone
( Ciy : Emal

Stote, Zip

L e L T e T S p——

To make changes io your addrass, email or telephone number, vigit Discover.com

Continued on next poge
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DISCEVER

Account number ending Iy 4195
Opan Dats: Jan 28, 2017 - Close Dote: Faby 27,2017

Page 3 of 4

CONTACT US_

e M R rmbe g AL b

Mubl.lu

| Web ' £%s  Phone nquiry  Mall Paymants
! Access yaur H#Y  Monage your Wa . 1-B00-DISCOVER . Discover ¥ Discover i
; accaunt securaly occaunt anylime, T [1-800-347.2689) PG Bax 30943 PO Box 6104
i at Discover.com anywhars al TOD 1-800-347-7449 Salt Lake City Caral Streom :
b e o MDisgoverCOm — AR e 1 60197-6103
Transactions
Trans. Date  Post Dute
Faas Feb22 ~ Feh 22 LATE FEE s 37 00
TOTAL FEES FOR THIS PERIOD . n . a7.00
Intarest Chargadl INTEREST CHARGE ON PURCHASES s 101,18
INTEREST CHARGE ON CASH ADVANCES 000
INTEREST CHARGE ON BALANCE TRANSRERS 0,00
TOTAL INTEREST FOR THIS PERIOD 10118
2017 Tolals Year-to-Duafe
TOTAL PEES CHARGED IN 2017 . $ 74.00
TOQTAL INTEREST CHARGEQ N 2017 $ 199,29
lnterest Charge Calculation
Yaur Annual Percentage Rata [APR) fs the annual infaraest rate an yaur account,
Currant Billing Peried:31 days
ANNUAL PERCENTAGE RATE BALANCE SUBJECT TO
TYRE OF BALANCE (APR} INTEREST RATE INTEREST CHARGE
Purchases
04/16/2016 and affor 29.9%% V $327,28 $3.94
09/16/2015 1o 04/15/2014 29.49% V $143,8 $3.60
02/16/201210 0%/15/2015 24,49% V $4,290.29 $89.24
Cash Advances 24,49% V $0.00 $0:00
VeVYarfable Rete
SRR S AN

Information For You

For more Information obout how Intares! charges are caleulated soe your Curdmunmbar Agraement or go lo www.discover,com/Interesicharges

NOTICE: SEE REVERSE SIDE FOR IMPORTANT INFORMATION
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SASHA M MURPHY oo AcEoUD] numbey endingin 4198 . Open Dale: Jan 28, 2017 - Cloge Qate; Feb 27,2017 Page4 of 4

Information For You ... Condinued

FICQ® Credit Scoro Terms

Yaur score ond kay factars use the FICO® Seore 8 medel, They aru based on your TransUnien cradil repert and ity ba diffarant from other credit scarus
This informestion Is intended for and anly provided ta Primary cardmembers who hove on avallable score. Soe Mscaver.com/FCO ahout tha uvoilubiliiy.of'
your acora, Your scora and key faclors ore ovailable on Discover,com and your scara is pravided on staternents, You will see up lo o year of racen scoras
oriling starting whan you became u cordmambar, Discover and other landers may usa diffarant Inpuls, such as a FICO® Cradit Score, olher credi} scores ond
mere infarrmatian in cradit dacisions, This benefit may changa or end in the fulure. FICO s o rogistarad trademark of the Falr lsawe Corporation in tha Unlled
Statas and other couniries,

It you prafer not to recelve your FICO® Cradit Scara just coll us af 1-800-DISCOVER (1-800-347-2683), Plaote give us two billing cycles to process your
request, To learn more, vislt Discover com/FICO . .

Discover Financlal Sarvieas and Fair Isoac are not credii repalr organizations as defined undar faderal o state law, including the Cradii Repolr Organizations
Aq). Discovur Financial Servicas nnd Falr lspoc da not provide ‘eradit repair” sarvices or assistancs ragarding “rebuilding* or lemproving® your credil rcard,
aradit history ar credit vating,

Availahility of FICO® Credit Score

As on octiva cardmamber, you may see your FICO# Credlf Scate on yaur manthly slatement or online, Reasons why you may hot see yaur FICO® Cradii
Score Includa: if you opt oul; if you have key infarmetian that ls mismatched or missing, as ona example, an addresa change thet has not besn updated with
Dissovar or TransUnion; if your aradil history is tua new; if yur account status is abantoned, bankrupt, fraud, lost o stolen, closed, tovoked, or thorged off;
ifyau have o foreign address. Your FICO® Scora s discluvad on stalamants when your stefament Is availabla, Yoy may net racalve o slalemant if you hiove no
account adivily such as no purchase tronsactions, teas, lnterast, or paymanis for approximetaly 30 doys,
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The JS 44 civil cover sheet and the information contained herein neither replace nor supplement the filing and service of pleadings or other papers as required by law, except as
provided by local rules of court. This form, approved by the Judicial Conference of the United States in September 1974, is required for the use of the Clerk of Court for the
purpose of initiating the civil docket sheet. (SEE INSTRUCTIONS ON NEXT PAGE OF THIS FORM.)

ga@r}a Blz%l\gp@fl%lf of herself and all others similarly situated, DBgo'\:/gl\&ﬁkNJw% Kohn Law Firm S.C.

JS 44 (Rev. 08/16)

(b) County of Residence of First Listed Plaintiff ~ Eau Claire
(EXCEPT IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES)

County of Residence of First Listed Defendant ~ Sussex Cty, DE
(IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES ONLY)

IN LAND CONDEMNATION CASES, USE THE LOCATION OF
THE TRACT OF LAND INVOLVED.

NOTE:

ss, and Telephone Numb: Attorneys (If Known)

Th@r}waétﬁ).rrll_e cSJﬁFsirTr’.\',aE%éﬂd ohsumer Justice ?f)enter P.A., 367
Commerce Court, Vadnais Heights, MN 55127, 651-770-9707,
tommy@consumerjusticecenter.com

I1. BASIS OF JURISDICTION (Place an “X” in One Box Only) I1l. CITIZENSHIP OF PRINCIPAL PARTIES (Place an “X” in One Box for Plaintiff
(For Diversity Cases Only) and One Box for Defendant)
O 1 U.S. Government X 3 Federal Question PTF DEF PTF DEF
Plaintiff (U.S. Government Not a Party) Citizen of This State a1 O 1 Incorporated or Principal Place 04 04
of Business In This State
3 2 U.S. Government O 4 Diversity Citizen of Another State a2 O 2 Incorporated and Principal Place g5 A3dsb
Defendant (Indicate Citizenship of Parties in Item I11) of Business In Another State
Citizen or Subject of a o3 O 3 Foreign Nation a6 06
Foreign Country
IV. NATURE OF SUIT (Place an “X” in One Box Only) Click here for: Nature of Suit Code Descriptions.
| CONTRACT TORTS FORFEITURE/PENALTY BANKRUPTCY OTHER STATUTES ]
3 110 Insurance PERSONAL INJURY PERSONAL INJURY |3 625 Drug Related Seizure 3 422 Appeal 28 USC 158 O 375 False Claims Act
0 120 Marine 0 310 Airplane O 365 Personal Injury - of Property 21 USC 881 |3 423 Withdrawal 3 376 Qui Tam (31 USC
3 130 Miller Act O 315 Airplane Product Product Liability 3 690 Other 28 USC 157 3729(a))
0 140 Negotiable Instrument Liability 0 367 Health Care/ 0 400 State Reapportionment
3 150 Recovery of Overpayment |3 320 Assault, Libel & Pharmaceutical PROPERTY RIGHTS O 410 Antitrust
& Enforcement of Judgment Slander Personal Injury 0 820 Copyrights 0 430 Banks and Banking
O 151 Medicare Act O 330 Federal Employers’ Product Liability 3 830 Patent 3 450 Commerce
0 152 Recovery of Defaulted Liability 0 368 Asbestos Personal O 840 Trademark O 460 Deportation
Student Loans O 340 Marine Injury Product O 470 Racketeer Influenced and
(Excludes Veterans) O 345 Marine Product Liability LABOR SOCIAL SECURITY. Corrupt Organizations
O 153 Recovery of Overpayment Liability PERSONAL PROPERTY |3 710 Fair Labor Standards 3 861 HIA (1395ff) X 480 Consumer Credit
of Veteran’s Benefits 3 350 Motor Vehicle O 370 Other Fraud Act 3 862 Black Lung (923) 3 490 Cable/Sat TV
3 160 Stockholders’ Suits O 355 Motor Vehicle O 371 Truth in Lending O 720 Labor/Management 3 863 DIWC/DIWW (405(g)) | O 850 SecuritiessCommodities/
0 190 Other Contract Product Liability 3 380 Other Personal Relations 0 864 SSID Title XVI Exchange
3 195 Contract Product Liability |3 360 Other Personal Property Damage O 740 Railway Labor Act 3 865 RSI (405(g)) 3 890 Other Statutory Actions
0 196 Franchise Injury O 385 Property Damage 3 751 Family and Medical 0 891 Agricultural Acts
3 362 Personal Injury - Product Liability Leave Act O 893 Environmental Matters
Medical Malpractice 3 790 Other Labor Litigation 3 895 Freedom of Information
| REAL PROPERTY CIVIL RIGHTS PRISONER PETITIONS |3 791 Employee Retirement FEDERAL TAX SUITS Act
0 210 Land Condemnation O 440 Other Civil Rights Habeas Corpus: Income Security Act 0 870 Taxes (U.S. Plaintiff 0 896 Arbitration
3 220 Foreclosure 0 441 Voting O 463 Alien Detainee or Defendant) O 899 Administrative Procedure
3 230 Rent Lease & Ejectment O 442 Employment O 510 Motions to Vacate 3 871 IRS—Third Party Act/Review or Appeal of
3 240 Torts to Land 0 443 Housing/ Sentence 26 USC 7609 Agency Decision
3 245 Tort Product Liability Accommodations O 530 General O 950 Constitutionality of
3 290 All Other Real Property 0O 445 Amer. w/Disabilities - | O 535 Death Penalty IMMIGRATION State Statutes
Employment Other: 0 462 Naturalization Application
O 446 Amer. w/Disabilities - | 3 540 Mandamus & Other |3 465 Other Immigration
Other 0 550 Civil Rights Actions
O 448 Education 3 555 Prison Condition
3 560 Civil Detainee -
Conditions of
Confinement

V. ORIGIN (Place an “X’” in One Box Only)

X1 Original 3 2 Removed from A 3 Remanded from O 4 Reinstated or 3 5 Transferred from 3 6 Multidistrict O 8 Multidistrict
Proceeding State Court Appellate Court Reopened Another District Litigation - Litigation -
(specify) Transfer Direct File

Cite the U.S. Civil Statute under Whichglou are filing (Do not cite jurisdictional statutes unless diversity):
15 U.S.C. § 1681 et seq. and 15 U.S.C. §1692 et seq.

Brief description of cause: ) ) ) . .
Violation of the Fair Credit Reporting Act and the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act

VI. CAUSE OF ACTION

VIlI. REQUESTED IN (A CHECK IF THIS IS A CLASS ACTION DEMAND $ CHECK YES only if demanded in complaint:
COMPLAINT: UNDER RULE 23, F.R.CV.P. JURY DEMAND: X Yes [ No
VIII. RELATED CASE(S) ( |
See instructions):
IF ANY JUDGE DOCKET NUMBER
DATE SIGNATURE OF ATTORNEY OF RECORD
05/25/2017 s/Thomas J. Lyons Jr.
FOR OFFICE USE ONLY
RECEIPT # AMOUNT APPLYING IFP JUDGE MAG. JUDGE
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INSTRUCTIONS FOR ATTORNEYS COMPLETING CIVIL COVER SHEET FORM JS 44
Authority For Civil Cover Sheet

The JS 44 civil cover sheet and the information contained herein neither replaces nor supplements the filings and service of pleading or other papers as
required by law, except as provided by local rules of court. This form, approved by the Judicial Conference of the United States in September 1974, is
required for the use of the Clerk of Court for the purpose of initiating the civil docket sheet. Consequently, a civil cover sheet is submitted to the Clerk of
Court for each civil complaint filed. The attorney filing a case should complete the form as follows:

l.(@) Plaintiffs-Defendants. Enter names (last, first, middle initial) of plaintiff and defendant. If the plaintiff or defendant is a government agency, use
only the full name or standard abbreviations. If the plaintiff or defendant is an official within a government agency, identify first the agency and
then the official, giving both name and title.

(b) County of Residence. For each civil case filed, except U.S. plaintiff cases, enter the name of the county where the first listed plaintiff resides at the
time of filing. In U.S. plaintiff cases, enter the name of the county in which the first listed defendant resides at the time of filing. (NOTE: In land
condemnation cases, the county of residence of the "defendant™ is the location of the tract of land involved.)

(c) Attorneys. Enter the firm name, address, telephone number, and attorney of record. If there are several attorneys, list them on an attachment, noting
in this section "(see attachment)".

1. Jurisdiction. The basis of jurisdiction is set forth under Rule 8(a), F.R.Cv.P., which requires that jurisdictions be shown in pleadings. Place an "X"
in one of the boxes. If there is more than one basis of jurisdiction, precedence is given in the order shown below.
United States plaintiff. (1) Jurisdiction based on 28 U.S.C. 1345 and 1348. Suits by agencies and officers of the United States are included here.
United States defendant. (2) When the plaintiff is suing the United States, its officers or agencies, place an "X" in this box.
Federal question. (3) This refers to suits under 28 U.S.C. 1331, where jurisdiction arises under the Constitution of the United States, an amendment
to the Constitution, an act of Congress or a treaty of the United States. In cases where the U.S. is a party, the U.S. plaintiff or defendant code takes
precedence, and box 1 or 2 should be marked.
Diversity of citizenship. (4) This refers to suits under 28 U.S.C. 1332, where parties are citizens of different states. When Box 4 is checked, the
citizenship of the different parties must be checked. (See Section 111 below; NOTE: federal question actions take precedence over diversity
cases.)

I11.  Residence (citizenship) of Principal Parties. This section of the JS 44 is to be completed if diversity of citizenship was indicated above. Mark this
section for each principal party.

IV.  Nature of Suit. Place an "X" in the appropriate box. If there are multiple nature of suit codes associated with the case, pick the nature of suit code
that is most applicable. Click here for: Nature of Suit Code Descriptions.

V. Origin. Place an "X" in one of the seven boxes.
Original Proceedings. (1) Cases which originate in the United States district courts.
Removed from State Court. (2) Proceedings initiated in state courts may be removed to the district courts under Title 28 U.S.C., Section 1441.
When the petition for removal is granted, check this box.
Remanded from Appellate Court. (3) Check this box for cases remanded to the district court for further action. Use the date of remand as the filing
date.
Reinstated or Reopened. (4) Check this box for cases reinstated or reopened in the district court. Use the reopening date as the filing date.
Transferred from Another District. (5) For cases transferred under Title 28 U.S.C. Section 1404(a). Do not use this for within district transfers or
multidistrict litigation transfers.
Multidistrict Litigation — Transfer. (6) Check this box when a multidistrict case is transferred into the district under authority of Title 28 U.S.C.
Section 1407.
Multidistrict Litigation — Direct File. (8) Check this box when a multidistrict case is filed in the same district as the Master MDL docket.
PLEASE NOTE THAT THERE IS NOT AN ORIGIN CODE 7. Origin Code 7 was used for historical records and is no longer relevant due to
changes in statue.

VI.  Cause of Action. Report the civil statute directly related to the cause of action and give a brief description of the cause. Do not cite jurisdictional
statutes unless diversity. Example: U.S. Civil Statute: 47 USC 553 Brief Description: Unauthorized reception of cable service

VII.  Requested in Complaint. Class Action. Place an "X" in this box if you are filing a class action under Rule 23, F.R.Cv.P.
Demand. In this space enter the actual dollar amount being demanded or indicate other demand, such as a preliminary injunction.
Jury Demand. Check the appropriate box to indicate whether or not a jury is being demanded.

VIII. Related Cases. This section of the JS 44 is used to reference related pending cases, if any. If there are related pending cases, insert the docket
numbers and the corresponding judge names for such cases.

Date and Attorney Signature. Date and sign the civil cover sheet.
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AO 440 (Rev. 06/12) Summons in a Civil Action

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

for the
Western District of Wisconsin =[]

Sasha Rizzo on behalf of herself and all others
similarly situated

Plaintiff(s)
V.
Discover Bank and Kohn Law Firm S.C.

Civil Action No.

N N N N N N N N N N N N

Defendant(s)

SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION

Discover Bank
100 West Market
Greenwood, DE 19950

To: (Defendant’s name and address)

A lawsuit has been filed against you.

Within 21 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you received it) — or 60 days if you
are the United States or a United States agency, or an officer or employee of the United States described in Fed. R. Civ.
P. 12 (a)(2) or (3) — you must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of
the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The answer or motion must be served on the plaintiff or plaintiff’s attorney,

whose name and address are: 1homas J. Lyons Jr. Esg.
Thomas J. Lyons Esq.

367 Commerce Court

Vadnais Heights, MN 55127
tommy@-consumerjusticecenter.com
tlyons@lyonslawfirm.com

If you fail to respond, judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the complaint.
You also must file your answer or motion with the court.

CLERK OF COURT

Date:

Signature of Clerk or Deputy Clerk
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Civil Action No.

PROOF OF SERVICE
(This section should not be filed with the court unless required by Fed. R. Civ. P. 4 (1))

This summons for (name of individual and title, if any)

was received by me on (date)

3 1 personally served the summons on the individual at (place)

on (date) ;or

3 1 left the summons at the individual’s residence or usual place of abode with (name)
, a person of suitable age and discretion who resides there,
on (date) , and mailed a copy to the individual’s last known address; or

(A | served the summons on (name of individual) , Who is

designated by law to accept service of process on behalf of (name of organization)

on (date) ;or
3 | returned the summons unexecuted because por
(A Other (specify):
My fees are $ for travel and $ for services, for a total of $ 0.00

I declare under penalty of perjury that this information is true.

Date:
Server’s signature

Printed name and title

Server’s address

Additional information regarding attempted service, etc:
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AO 440 (Rev. 06/12) Summons in a Civil Action

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

for the
Western District of Wisconsin =[]

Sasha Rizzo on behalf of herself and all others
similarly situated

Plaintiff(s)
V.
Discover Bank and Kohn Law Firm S.C.

Civil Action No.

N N N N N N N N N N N N

Defendant(s)

SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION

Kohn Law Firm S.C.

Registered Agent: Robert E. Potzebowski Jr.
735 N. Water Street #1300

Milwaukee, WI 53202

To: (Defendant’s name and address)

A lawsuit has been filed against you.

Within 21 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you received it) — or 60 days if you
are the United States or a United States agency, or an officer or employee of the United States described in Fed. R. Civ.
P. 12 (a)(2) or (3) — you must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of
the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The answer or motion must be served on the plaintiff or plaintiff’s attorney,

whose name and address are: 1homas J. Lyons Jr. Esg.
Thomas J. Lyons Esq.

367 Commerce Court

Vadnais Heights, MN 55127
tommy@-consumerjusticecenter.com
tlyons@lyonslawfirm.com

If you fail to respond, judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the complaint.
You also must file your answer or motion with the court.

CLERK OF COURT

Date:

Signature of Clerk or Deputy Clerk
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AO 440 (Rev. 06/12) Summons in a Civil Action (Page 2)

Civil Action No.

PROOF OF SERVICE
(This section should not be filed with the court unless required by Fed. R. Civ. P. 4 (1))

This summons for (name of individual and title, if any)

was received by me on (date)

3 1 personally served the summons on the individual at (place)

on (date) ;or

3 1 left the summons at the individual’s residence or usual place of abode with (name)
, a person of suitable age and discretion who resides there,
on (date) , and mailed a copy to the individual’s last known address; or

(A | served the summons on (name of individual) , Who is

designated by law to accept service of process on behalf of (name of organization)

on (date) ;or
3 | returned the summons unexecuted because por
(A Other (specify):
My fees are $ for travel and $ for services, for a total of $ 0.00

I declare under penalty of perjury that this information is true.

Date:
Server’s signature

Printed name and title

Server’s address

Additional information regarding attempted service, etc:
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